HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION cuTy o
OF THE CITY OF PLATTEVILLE PLATTEVILMLE

AGENDA

THURSDAY, MAY 16, 2024 - 6:00 P.M.
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, SECOND FLOOR IN CITY HALL—75 N. BONSON STREET

ik Call to Order
2. Approval of Minutes from April 18, 2024
3. Action ltems:
a. Certificate of Appropriateness — None
b. Request for Bids — Property Nomination Consultant
4, Discussion ltems:

a. Chapter 27 Revisions
b. Commission Goals and Preservation Planning.

5; Citizen Comments
6. Announcements/Upcoming Items
7. Next Potential Meeting Date: Thursday, June 20, 2024 at 6:00 p.m.

8. Adjourn



HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION CITY OF

OF THE CITY OF PLATTEVILLE PL ATTEVI L L E
MINUTES T

THURSDAY, APRIL 18, 2024 — 6:00 P.M.
NORTH CONFERENCE ROOM IN CITY HALL—75 N. BONSON STREET

MEMBERS PRESENT: Beth Frieders, Ken Kilian

ALTERNATES PRESENT: Garry Prohaska

MEMBERS ABSENT: Michael Albees, Paul Soderblom, Garrison Ledbury
ALTERNATES ABSENT: Tracey Roberts

STAFF PRESENT: Ric Riniker, Joe Carroll

OTHERS PRESENT: Two UWP students

Call to Order
Chairman Kilian called the meeting to order at 6:04 pm.

Approval of Minutes — March 21, 2024
Motion by Frieders to approve the minutes. Second by Prohaska. Motion approved.

Action Items
a. Certificate of Appropriateness — None

Discussion ltems

a. Chapter 27 Revisions
The commission discussed the changes to Chapter 27 that have been proposed by the
subcommittee. Prohaska had provided some additional information that was handed out to the
members. Discussion was limited due to the desire to have all the members present before
finalizing the changes.

b. Commission Goals and Preservation Planning
Prohaska suggested an additional goal of applying for more grants.
Members need to submit ideas in writing for consideration by the Commission.

Citizen Comments
There were two students from UWP in attendance. They just asked about the basic duties of the

Commission.

Announcements/Upcoming ltems
WAHPC conference in Mineral Point next week. Prohaska, Riniker and Carroll will be attending.

Next Meeting Date: If needed, the next meeting will be on Thursday, May 16, 2024 at 6:00 p.m.
Adjourn

Motion by Frieders to adjourn. Second by Prohaska. Motion approved. Meeting adjourned at 6:42
p.m.

Joe Carroll, Community Development Director Date Approved



REQUEST FOR BIDS CITYOF

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES PLATTEVILLE

NOMINATION PROJECT " e

The City of Platteville is requesting bids to prepare two individual National Register of Historic Places
nominations. Funding for the project is from a $14,000 Wisconsin Historical Society Subgrant (WI-24-
10017).

Background

The City of Platteville, home to the University of Wisconsin-Platteville and a regional retail service
center, has a population of approximately 12,000. The City is located in Grant County and is
approximately 75 miles from Madison and 20 miles northeast of Dubuque, lowa. The City’s historic
downtown is listed on the National Register of Historic Places, which, along with other cultural and
historical sites, attracts visitors from the area. Platteville has three residential districts that are also
listed and has a relatively large percentage of individual properties that are in a suitable age range to be
considered historic. Most of these historic properties are concentrated in the central part of the
community and comprise distinct neighborhoods that are worthy of preservation activities.

Project Description

The project involves undertaking and coordinating a project to prepare National Register of Historic
Places nomination materials for two individual properties:

Platteville Civic Center/National Guard Armory — 475 N. Water Street
Paul Steuhl House - 1050 N. Second Street

All procedures and products shall comply with the Historic Preservation Subgrant Administration Manual
provided by the Wisconsin Historical Society and the attached Scope of Work. All work related to this
project shall be completed by July 26, 2025.

Bid Requirements

Please submit bids via mail or email, with a dated cover letter signed by the appropriate company
official, by 4:30 p.m. on July 1, 2024 and include the following information:

1. Company name, address, phone number, email address, and primary project contact.
Recent experience in doing similar projects and resumes of all professionals expected to work
on the project.

3. Responsibilities of all key personnel, estimated work hours, and costs associated with each task
required in the work program.

4. Discussion of the general approach to the work, demonstrating a basic understanding of the
requirements of the project and the products to be produced.

5. Schedule for performing the work elements, including beginning and ending dates that result in
compliance with the MOA’s Period of Performance.



6. A statement of the hourly fee charged by each participant and an itemization of other expenses
necessary to satisfactorily work on the project. Expenses may include travel, photography,
clerical services, etc.

7. Total cost, including a maximum limit.

8. List of references for projects similar in scope which your firm has prepared.

Selection Process
The bids will be evaluated using the following criteria:

Degree to which the bid meets the requirements of this request.
Estimated total project costs.

3. Consultant’s expertise and experience with similar projects. Consultants must meet the
Secretary of the Interior’s Professional Qualification Standards at 36 CFR 61 for Architectural
History and have completed similar work in Wisconsin.

4. Proposed project completion schedule.

5. Proposal that is the most advantageous to the community.

Contact Information
Questions regarding the project and completed bids can be directed to:

Joe Carroll, Community Development Director
City of Platteville

75 N. Bonson Street

PO Box 780

Platteville, W1 53818

608-348-9741 x 2235

carrolli@platteville.org

Additional Information

The selected consultant will be required to enter into a contract with the City that meets the
requirements of the Memorandum of Agreement between the City and the State Historical Society
(draft contract attached).



B WISCONSIN

¢
'_(‘:A.,\ HISTORIGAL
SOGIETY

Scope of Work
Project No. WI-24-10017
Platteville, Wisconsin

The State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO) and the City of Platteville, Wisconsin
(Grantee), agree to the following scope of work and conditions for the preparation of National
Register of Historic Places (NRHP) nomination documents for the following properties in

Platteville:
o Platteville Civic Center building / National Guard Armory — 475 N. Water St.

o Paul Steuhl House — 1050 N. Second St.

Scope :
The Grantee will undertake and coordinate the completion and submission to the SHPO of
sufficient documentation for nomination of this property to the NRHP.

Compliance with Federal and State Guidance
Forms and supporting materials for the nomination will be completed in accordance with the
guidance in National Register Bulletin 16A: How to Complete the National Register

Registration Form.

The nomination will comply with Additional Wisconsin SHPO Requirements and will be
submitted using the "Wisconsin Preferred" nomination form, both of which are available at
https.//wihist.org/NR-Manual . The Grantee will direct the principal investigator to these
documents and advise them that compliance is required.

Subgrant Manual

The Grantee will comply with all standards and requirements in the CLG Subgrant Manual
(Subgrant Manual) for allocation and use of federal funding. The Grantee will direct the
principal investigator to the Subgrant Manual and inform them that compliance is required.

Request for Bids

After the execution of the Memorandum of Agreement (MOA), the Grantee will issue a
Request for Bids (RFB) to qualified historic preservation consultants. The Grantee shall use
a competitive process in the procurement of consulting services.

Contract Template

A template for a contract between the Grantee and the selected consultant will be provided
for convenience. While this template may be revised to suit the Grantee's specific
circumstances, the following sections (sections XlIl and XIV in the template) are critical to
the integrity of the National Register program and shall be included unrevised in the executed

contract:

SCOPE OF WORK PLATTEVILLE- WI-24-10017 1



Ownership of Documents
All information gathered, data collected, photos taken, and reports prepared during
the completion of this project are the property of the SHPO and shall not be made
publicly available until the project is complete and deliverables are submitted to the
SHPO.

Intellectual Property
The Consultant hereby grants the SHPO a non-exclusive, irrevocable, royally-free
license to all copyrightable material (“Material’) created within the scope of the
agreement without limitation. The SHPO shall have the right to reproduce, alter,
modify, publish, and display all Material created under the scope of this agreement as
necessary in the opinion of SHPO to conform to and comply with their requirements
and standards, and those of the National Park Service.

Principal Investigator and city staff

The Grantee’s Project Manager shall assist the principal investigator as needed. Time spenl
by city staff to facilitate the project is eligible for reimbursement by the subgrant and may be
tracked and claimed for reimbursement.

SHPO Review of nomination documents

Alter draft nominations are submitted to the SHPO, the SHPO shall retain editorial privilege
over the nominations. The Grantee shall inform the consultant(s) of their responsibility to
assist with an iterative revision of the nominations with the National Register Coordinator at
the SHPO, which may extend beyond the Period of Performance.

Deliverables
All deliverables are due on or before July 26, 2025.

The completed nomination packets will be submitted to SHPO by July 26, 2025, to allow
staff to confirm that all deliverables are complete and sufficient prior to the end of the Period
of Performance.

The SHPO shall retain non-exclusive, irrevocable, royally-free license to all copyrightable
material (“Material") created within the scope of the agreement without limitation. The SHPO
shall have the right to reproduce, alter, modify, publish, and display all Material created under
the scope of this agreement as necessary in the opinion of SHPO to comply with Wisconsin
SHPO requirements and standards, and those of the National Park Service.

The SHPO shall review all deliverables within 30 days of receipt, and work with the consultant
to rectify incomplete or inadequate content. Project-related activies may occur after
submission of deliverables.

SCOPE OF WORK 7 PLATTEVILLE- WI-24-10017 2



Template for Consultant Contract for National Register nominations

This contract template is provided for the convenience of the CLG partner community
when contracting with a consultant to complete grant-funded National Register
nominations. It may be amended to fit the specific needs of the local government, and
may be negotiated between the local government and the consultant.

However, sections XlIIl and XIV must be included verbatim in the final contract.
CONSULTANT CONTRACT

THIS AGREEMENT is made by and between the City of Platteville, Wisconsin (the City)
and [name of_consultant] (the Consultant).

WHEREAS, the City has received a grant from the federal Department of Interior, through
a subgrant from the State Historic Preservation Office of the State of Wisconsin (SHPO);
and

WHEREAS, the stipulated Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) and Scope of Work (SOW)
for this project include producing National Register of Historic Places (NRHP) nomination
documents for the following properties in Platteville:

e Platteville Civic Center building / National Guard Armory — 475 N. Water St.

¢ Paul Steuhl House — 1050 N. Second St.

and WHEREAS, the Consultant meets the Secretary of the Interior's Professional
Qualification Standards for Architectural History, is capable of providing the professional
services required, and is willing to make those services available to complete nomination
documents;

NOW THEREFORE, the parties hereto mutually agree as follows;

. Scope of Services
The Consultant will meet all stipulations in the MOA and SOW for completion of the
nomination(s), and will coordinate all project work with the SHPO.

The Consultant will produce all deliverables in the MOA and SOW, and will comply
with the conditions and requirements of the MOA between the City and the SHPO,
which is hereby incorporated into this agreement.

The consultant shall assume responsibility for presenting the nomination(s) to the
State Historic Preservation Review Board when it appears on the Board’s agenda.
Any edits or supplementary information required by the National Register
Coordinator, State Review Board, the National Park Service will be provided by the
consultant. This process may extend beyond of the Period of Performance of the
grant. Costs associated with this review process will be included in the project budget.



V.

V1.

VIL.

Period of Performance
The services of the Consultant shall commence on the signing of this agreement and
shall be completed so that all final products are completed and accepted by the
SHPO by July 29, 2025,

Compensation and Method of Payment

The City shall compensate the Consultant up to $[amount] for work performed toward
the completion of the project described in the MOA and SOW governing the funding
of the project. Payments up to 90% of the grant amount may be made invoiced by
the Consultant and paid by the City at any time during the project's Period of
Performance. 10% of the maximum amount of compensation shall be retained until
all project work has been completed and all deliverables submitted and accepted as
satisfactory.

If this contract is terminated under the provisions of Article IX below, the Consuitant
shall be compensated for all services performed and expenses incurred up to the
date of termination.

Amendments

The City may occasionally propose changes to the scope of services to be performed
hereunder. Such changes, including increases or decreases in the amount of
compensation paid to the Consultant, which are mutually agreed upon by the City
and the Consultant shall be incorporated in written amendments to this agreement.

Compliance with Federal, State, and Local Laws

The Consultant shall comply with all federal and state laws and regulations
concerning equal opportunity, affirmative action and fair employment opportunities.
The Consultant further agrees to comply with all applicable regulations, laws,
ordinances, and codes to the state and local government and policies, guidelines and
requirements of this federal grant program identified as 15.904 in the Catalog of
Federal Domestic Assistance.

Interest of the Consultant

The Consultant covenants that they now have no personal interest, direct or indirect,
in any property or business of any kind, and shall not acquire any such interest, which
would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of services under this
contract.

Indemnification

The Consultant agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the City and its agents
from and against all loss or expense (including costs and attorney's fees) by reason
of any claim or suit arising out of the acts or omissions of the Consultant its
employees, agents or assigns the Consultant from liability imposed by law upon the
Consultant or its agents or employees for damages because of bodily injury, including
death at any time resulting therefrom, sustained by any person or person or on any



Viil.

XL

account of damages to property, including loss of use thereof, whether caused by or
contributed to by the Consultant or its agents or employees.

The Consultant shall indemnify and hold harmless the State Historic Preservation
Officer, the Wisconsin Historical Society, all its officers, agents and employees from
all suits, action, or claims of any character brought for or on account of any injuries
for damages received by any persons or property resuiting from the operations of the
Consultant in executing work under this agreement.

Termination of Contract for Cause

if, through any cause, the Consuitant shall fail to fulfill in timely and proper manner
its obligations under this contract, or if the Consultant shall violate any of the
covenants, agreements or stipulations of the Agreement, the Village shall thereupon
have the right to terminate this contract by giving notice to the Consultant of such
termination and specifying the effective date of such termination. In such event, all
finished or unfinished documents, data, studies, reports, or other materials prepared
by the Consultant under this contract shall, at the option of the City, become the
property of the City, and the Consultant shall be entitled to receive just and equitable
compensation for any work satisfactorily completed hereunder.

Notwithstanding the above, the Consultant shall not be relieved of liability to the City
for damages sustained by the City as a result of any breach of contract by the
Consultant. The City may withhold any payments to the Consultant for the purpose
of set-off until such time as the exact amount of damages due to the City from the
Constultant is determined.

. Termination to Contract for Convenience

The City or the Consultant may terminate this agreement at any time by giving at
least twenty (20) days’ notice in writing to the other party. If the contract is terminated
as provided herein, the Consultant will be paid for the time and expenses incurred up
to the termination date. If this contract is terminated due to the fault of the Consultant,
Article VIl hereof relative to termination shall apply.

Records and Audits

The Consuitant shall maintain records, adequate to identify and account for all costs
pertaining to this contract and such other records as may be deemed necessary to
assure proper accounting for ali project funds. These records will be made available
for audit purposes to the City or any authorized representative, and will be retained
for four (4) years after the expiration of this contract unless permission to destroy
them is granted by the SHPO.

Worker's Compensation

This is intended as, and is, an independent contract between the City and the
Consultant. Neither the Consultant nor any pariner or employee of the Consultant
shall, by provision of this contract, become an employee of the City.



XIl. Equal Opportunity and Affirmative Action
In the performance of services under this contract, the Consultant agrees to not
discriminate against any employee or applicant on the basis of race, color, religion,
sex (including pregnancy and gender identity), ethnicity, political affiliation, sexual
orientation, marital status, disability, genetic information, age, membership in an
employee organization, retaliation, parental status, military service, or other non-merit
factor. Such action shall include, but not be limited to, the following: employment,
upgrading, demotion or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or
termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training,
including apprenticeship. The Consultant agrees to post in conspicuous places,
available to employees and applicants for employment, notices setting forth the
provisions of this non-discrimination clause:

"This program receives financial assistance for identification and
preservation of historic properties. The U.S. Department of the Interior
prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin or
handicap (mental and/or physical impairment).”

Xlll. Ownership of Documents
[this section must be included verbatim in the executed contract]
All of the reports, forms, information, data, etc., prepared or assembled by the
Consultant under this contract are the property of the City, The Consultant agrees
that they shall not be made available to any individual or organization at any time
without prior written approval of the City.

XIV. Intellectual Property

[this section must be included verbatim in the executed contract]

A. The Consultant hereby grants the SHPO a non-exclusive, irrevocable, royalty-
free license to all copyrightable material (“Material”) created within the scope of
the agreement without limitation. The SHPO shall have the right to reproduce,
alter, modify, publish, and display all Material created under the scope of this
agreement as necessary in the opinion of SHPO to conform to and comply with
their requirements and standards, and those of the National Park Service.

B. Further Warranties and Indemnities

(1) The Consultant represents and warrants to that:
(a) the Consultant is the sole author of the Material or has all rights to the
Material, and the Material is original,

(b) the Consultant has the right, power and authority to enter this contract,
and is the sole owner of the Material; and

(c) The Material contains no material that (i) infringes any copyright or
other proprietary right, and to the best of the Consultant’s knowledge,
contains no material that (ii) is libelous or a violation of any right of



privacy or publicity, or (iii) would otherwise subject SHPO to legal
liability.

(2) The Consultant will indemnify and hold harmless SHPQO from any loss,
damage, expense (including reasonable defense costs), recovery or
judgment that either party may incur (“Costs”) as a result of any claim made
against either which, if sustained, would constitute a breach of a
representation or warranty made by the Contractor in this Contract (each, a
“Claim”).

(3) All warranties, representations and indemnities made by the Consultant in
this Contract will survive any termination of this Contract, and will inure to
the benefit of the SHPO, the Wisconsin Historical Society, the State of
Wisconsin, and the National Parks Service, and their respective officers,
directors, officials, employees, agents and volunteers.

XV. Severability
It is mutually agreed that, in case any provision of the contract is determined by a
court of law to be unconstitutional, illegal or unenforceabile, it is the intention of the
parties that all other provisions of the contract remain in full force.

[N WITNESS THEREOF, parties hereto have caused this agreement to be executed the
year and date written below by their proper officers and representatives.

Consultant Date

[city/village] financial director Date

[city/village] project manager Date



: [ "
et Preservation Information

HISTORICAL State Historic Preservation Office
SOCIETY

Survey Consultants
Architecture, History, Archaeology

This list is provided as a convenience. It should not be considered an endorsement of any
individual or firm. The Wisconsin State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO) does not license,
permit, or endorse consultants. It is not comprehensive. There may be consultants not
listed here, based in or willing to work in Wisconsin, who meet the Secretary of the
Interior's Professional Qualification Standards for Architectural History (https://www.nps.gov/
articles/sec-standards-prof-quals.htm).

To be included in this list, consultants must meet the Secretary of the Interior's
Professional Qualification (SOIPQ) Standards at 36 CFR 61 for Architectural History, and
have completed an architecture and history survey in the state of Wisconsin. The SHPO
cannot guarantee that any work carried out by consultants listed here will meet federal and
state requirements.

The SHPO does not require survey consultants working in Wisconsin to be listed here,
nor does the SHPO require that municipalities or state or federal agencies hire a consultant
listed here for survey projects. SHPO staff can assist in determining whether any consultant
meets the SOIPQ Standards.

Considerations When Hiring a Survey Consultant
Has the consultant successfully completed an architecture and history survey in Wisconsin?

Is the consultant aware that the Wisconsin SHPO requires compliance with
survey methodology in either the Reconaissance Survey Manual or the Intensive Survey
Manual?

If the survey is funded by a grant from the SHPO, is the consultant willing to sign a
contract that requires compliance with a stipulated Scope of Work that has deadlines for
progress reporting, deliverables, completion of project work, and a project budget?

Does the consultant have experience preparing a survey report that is vetted by the

Wisconsin State Historic Preservation Officer? = i formation ab
discuss the pr ject with at Iea%two consultants, oriRoISHtoxaliol dupl

Before l%l’% erlé%? éﬁ S l'?l(étg\gg %Tﬁﬁt{\{ﬁg consu“ E conducting a survey for historic places

in your community or the selection of
a survey consultant, please contact the
o share the Scope of Work, Memorandum of ) P
Agreement, and any stipulations that will govern the

Certified Local Government
act Coordinator at the State Historic
projec Preservation Office - 608-264-6512




Bentonsport Preservation, LLC
Paula Mohr

26849 South Street

Bentonsport, IA 52565
319-592-3427
bentonsportpreservation.com
bentonsportpreservation@gmail.com

Commonwealth Heritage Group
Greg Rainka

8669 N. Deerwood Drive
Milwaukee, WI 53209
414-446-4121
commonwealthheritagegroup.com
grainka@chg-inc.com

CORRE Inc.

Megan Beer-Pemberton

6510 Grand Teton Plaza, Suite 314
Madison, WI 53719

608-826-6292

correinc.com
mbpemberton@correinc.com

EBI Consulting

21 B Street
Burlington, MA 01803
781-273-2500
ebiconsulting.com

Edge Consulting Engineers
624 Water St.

Prairie du Sac, WI 53578
608-644-1449
edgeconsult.com

Fairchild & Flatt Consulting LLC
Wm. Jason Flatt

1857 Riverside Avenue

Marinette, Wl 54143
715-735-1881
fairchildandlflatt.com
Jason@fairchildandflatt.com

Guarino Historic Resources
844 Home Avenue

Oak Park, IL 60304
708-386-1142
jeanguarino.com
guarinojl@amail.com

Heggland, Tim

6391 Hillsandwood Road
Mazomanie, Wl 53560
608-795-2650
tim.heggland@juno.com

Heritage Consulting Group
Nick Kraus

15 W. Highland Avenue
Philadelphia, PA 19118
215-248-1260
heritage-consulting.com
nkraus@heritage-consulting.com

Heritage Research, Ltd.
John N. Vogel

N89 W16785 Appleton Ave.
Menomonee Falls, WI 53051
262-251-7792

hrltd.org
invogel@hrltd.org

Hess Roise Historical Consultants
Rachel Peterson

100 N. First Street

Minneapolis, MN 55401
612-338-1987

hessroise.com
Rachel@hessroise.com

HNTB

10 West Mifflin St., Ste. 300
Madison, WI 53703
608-294-5000

hntb.com

Survey Consultants, Wisconsin



Klein, Gail

937 Brookside Circle
Stoughton, WI 53589
541-285-0352
gail.rae.klein@agmail.com

Legacy Architecture, Inc.
Jennifer L. Lehrke

605 Erie Avenue

Sheboygan, WI 53081
920-783-6303
leqacy-architecture.com
jlehrke@legacy-architecture.com

McQuillen Historical Consulting, LLC
Michael McQuillen

1900 E. Wood Place

Shorewood, WI 53211

414-817-2571
michaeltmcquillen@gmail.com

Mead and Hunt, Inc.

Emily Pettis

2440 Deming Way
Middleton, WI 53562
608-273-6380
meadhunt.com
emily.pettis@meadhunt.com

Miller, Elizabeth
4033 Tokay Boulevard
Madison, WI 53711
608-354-5016
elmillerwi@gmail.com

Museum Archaeology Program (MAP)
Wisconsin Historical Society

816 State St.

Madison, WI 53706

608-264-6560

wisconsinhistory.org/Records/Article/CS4047

Preserve, LLC

Donna Weiss

5027 North Berkeley Boulevard
Whitefish Bay, WI 53217
262-617-1408

preservellc.com
donna@preservellc.com

Ramaker

Ramaker & Associates
855 Community Drive
Sauk City, WI 53583
608-643-4100
ramaker.com

Ramsey Historic Consultants, Inc.
Emily Ramsey

1105 West Chicago Avenue, Suite 201
Chicago, IL 60642

312-421-1295

ramseyhcinc.com
info@ramseyhcinc.com

tes Historical Consulting, LLC
Traci E. Schnell

211 Paine Street

Kiel, WI 53042

262-366-0397
tracieschnell@gmail.com

Trileaf

380 Jackson Str #700
St Paul, MN 55101
800-652-5552
trileaf.com

University of Wisconsin-Milwaukee -
Cultural Resource Management
Sabin Hall 284, PO Box 413
Milwaukee, WI 53201-0413
414-229-3078

uwm.edu/archaeology-laboratory/uwm-crm/

icmill@uwm.edu

Survey Consultants, Wisconsin



Westwood Professional Services
8401 Greenway Blvd.

Suite 400

Middleton, WI 53562
608-821-6600
info@westwoodps.com

Survey Consultants, Wisconsin



Platteville CHAPTER 27 HISTORIC PRESERVATION
DRAFT — March 2024

TABLE OF CONTENTS
27.01 Purpose and Intent
27.02 Historic Preservation Commission Composition and Voting

27.03 General Powers and Duties
A. Surveys and Research
B. Recommend Historic Designation
C. Recognition of Local Historic Landmarks and Districts
D. Regulation of Construction, Reconstruction, Alteration and Demolition
E. Education and Training

27.04 Local Historic Landmarks
A. Designation Criteria
B. Initiating a Nomination for Designation
C. Procedures for Approving a Local Designation
D. Rescinding a Local Designation

27.05 Local Historic Districts
A. Designation Criteria
B. Initiating a Nomination for Designation
C. Procedures for Approving a Local Designation

27.06 Regulation of Construction, Reconstruction, Alteration and Demolition of Locally
Designated Properties

A. Standards and Guidelines
B. Criteria

C. Procedures

D. Appeals

27.07 Interim Control

27.08 Separability

27.09 Penalties for Violations

27.10 Listing of Designated Historic Landmarks and Districts

27.11 Definitions



27.01 PURPOSE AND INTENT

The Common Council recognizes that the City of Platteville contains buildings, structures,
signs, features, improvements, sites, and areas that have significant architectural,
archaeological, anthropological, historical, and cultural value. The Common Council further
recognizes that these historic resources represent the City's unique heritage, contribute to the
health, prosperity, safety and weifare of the City's residents, and serve as a source of great
interest to the City's residents and visitors. Therefore, the Common Council hereby finds that it
is in the public interest to identify, protect, preserve, promote, conserve and use historic
resources within the City of Platteville. The purpose of this chapter is therefore to:

1)

2)
3)

4)

5)

6)

7
8)

9)

Accomplish the identification, protection, promotion, preservation, conservation and use
of the City's historic resources, as embodied and reflected in the city's historic districts
and landmarks.

Ensure that the City's growth sensitively incorporates the City's historic resources.

Enhance the visual and aesthetic character of the City by ensuring that new design and
construction, when it happens, complements the City's historic resources.

Provide a framework for appropriate reinvestment in the City's historic landmarks and
historic districts that ensures any new design and construction complements the City's
historic resources and conforms to the standards of the historic district.

Apply federal, state and local preservation laws, acts and guidelines to safeguard the
City's historic resources and promote investment in them through enforcement of this
ordinance.

Recognize that the City's historic resources are economic assets that can attract
residents and visitors, create jobs, stabilize and improve property values, and stimulate
business and industry.

Foster civic pride in the beauty and accomplishments of the past.

Promote the use of and investment in historic districts and historic landmarks for the
education, pleasure and welfare of the people of the City.

Provide a clear regulatory framework for implementing, balancing, and accomplishing
the public policy announced in this chapter.

27.02 HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION CONPOSITION AND VOTING

A. COMPOSITION. The Historic Preservation Commission (HPC) is hereby created, consisting
of one (1) alderperson, four (4) regular members and three (3) alternates. Of the
membership, at least two shall be either the owner of property that has been designated
locally historic, or the owner of a property or business within the Main Street Commercial
Historic District, and the remaining members shall be City residents. Members must have
professional expertise or an avocational interest in architecture, history, architectural history,
planning, archeology, cultural anthropology, conservation, landscape architecture or closely
related fields as much as possible.

B. APPOINTMENTS. The Council President shall select a prospective commission member's
application that meets appointment requirements, and provide the application and credentials
to the council. Appointment will be subject to confirmation by the Common Council with a
majority vote of the quorum.



C. TERMS. The term of the alderperson shall be for one year. Regular members shall serve
staggered three (3) year terms expiring May 1 of each year, with two (2) full consecutive
terms possible. Alternate members shall serve for a three (3) year term with no limit to
consecutive term appointments. A regular member on completion their second consecutive
term shall not be eligible for reappointment as a regular member until at least a period of one
has passed. Said regular member may be appointed as an alternate. This provision shall not
apply to a regular member who fills the unexpired term of a resigned member.

D. MEETING PROCEDURES. All members shall receive agendas and packets for all meetings.
The alderperson shall chair the meeting but shall not vote unless required to make a quorum
or to break a tie vote. An alternate shall vote only in the absence of a regular member. Three
members are needed to establish a quorum, and three affirmative votes are needed to
approve any motion.

27.03 GENERAL POWERS AND DUTIES

The City of Platteville is an approved participant in the Certified Local Government (CLG)
Historic Preservation Program (https://www.wisconsinhistory.org/Records/Article/CS4321).
Through this, the Historic Preservation Commission is expected to enforce appropriate state or
local legislation for the designation and protection of historic properties, maintain a system for
the survey and inventory of local historic resources, and provide for public participation in the
local historic preservation program. The Historic Preservation Commission is eligible for
Wisconsin Historic Preservation Fund subgrants, and may apply for or promote these and other
grants to assist the Commission and city residents in performing our various duties.

A. SURVEYS AND RESEARCH

The Historic Preservation Commission shall undertake an ongoing survey and research effort
in the City of Platteville to identify neighborhoods, areas, sites, structures, and objects that
have special historic, community, architectural, or aesthetic importance, interest, or value
related to the development of the community. As part of the survey, the commission shall
review and evaluate prior surveys and studies by any unit of government or private
organization and compile appropriate descriptions, facts, and photographs. This should also
include the Archeological Survey Index (ASI). The commission shall identify potential
landmarks and apply procedures to nominate those potential landmarks that are at least fifty
(50) years old in groups based on the following criteria:

1. The potential landmarks situated in a single, identifiable neighborhood or distinct
geographical area of the community;

The potential landmarks associated with a particular person, event, or historical period;

3. The potential landmarks of a particular architectural style or school, or of a particular
architect, engineer, builder, designer, or craftsman; and/or artisan;

4. Such other criteria as may be adopted by the commission to assure systematic survey
and nomination of all potential landmarks within the City of Platteville.

B. RECOMMEND HISTORIC DESIGNATION

1. State and National Historic Nominations



a. The Historic Preservation Commission shall assist residents in preparing nomination
applications for historic designation at the State and National levels.

b. The Historic Preservation Commission shall review State and National Historic
nominations. When the Wisconsin State Historic Preservation Office receives a
nomination to the State or National Register of Historic Places for a property in the
community, it is shared with the Commission before it is finalized, allowing local
experts with local knowledge to review nominations and affirm that it meets the
standards of historic significance.

2. Local Historic Landmarks and Local Historic Districts

The Commission shall have the power to recommend designation of local historic
landmarks and local historic districts within the city limits of the City of Platteville.
Procedures and actions of the commission subject to Sections 27.04 and 27.05. Once
designated, such local historic landmarks and districts shall be subject to all the
provisions of this ordinance.

C. RECOGNITION OF LOCAL HISTORIC LANDMARKS AND DISTRICTS

At such time as a local historic landmark or local historic district has been properly
designated, the Commission in cooperation with the property owner(s) may cause to be
prepared and erected on such property a suitable plaque declaring such property as a local
historic landmark or local historic district. If not objected by the owner(s), the Commission
may organize a dedication of a historical marker at the site.

D. REGULATION OF CONSTRUCTION, RECONSTRUCTION, ALTERATION AND
DEMOLITION

For properties designated as a local historic landmark or located within a local historic district,
the Commission shall review all requests for construction, reconstruction, or alteration of all
or any part of the exterior of such property. The Commission shall review all requests for a
demolition permit for structures within the City of Platteville. See Section 27.086.

E. PROVIDE EDUCATION AND TRAINING

We still need language here

27.04 LOCAL HISTORIC LANDMARKS

A. DESIGNATION CRITERIA

For purposes of this ordinance, a local historic landmark designation may be placed on any
site, natural or improved, including any building, improvement or structure located thereon, or
any area of particular historic, architectural or cultural significance to the City of Platteville
which:

1. Exemplify or reflect the broad cultural, political, economic or social history of the nation,
state or community; or

2. Are identified with historic personages or with important events in national, state, or local
history; or



5.

Embody the distinguishing characteristics of an architectural type or specimen inherently
valuable for a study of a period, style, method of construction, or of indigenous materials
or crafismanship; or

Are representative of the notable work of a master builder, designer or architect who
influenced his age; or

Have yielded, or may be likely to yield, information important to prehistory or history.

B. INITIATING A NOMINATION FOR DESIGNATION

1.

2.

The process may be initiated by any of the following:
a. The owner of a property may nominate that property for designation.

b. Any member(s) of the Historic Preservation Commission may nominate a property
for designation if the member is of the opinion that the property may meet the criteria
in Section 27.04(A) or if the property is listed on the State or National Historic
Registry.

c. A member of the public may submit a nomination form with appropriate
documentation to the Historic Preservation Commission for review to determine if the
nomination may meet the criteria in Section 27.04(A) to continue with the process for
local designation.

A completed nomination form and any appropriate documentation shall be submitted to
the City. When an entity other than the property owner(s) submits a nomination form, all
property owners must sign the nomination form signifying their approval of the
application.

C. PROCEDURES FOR APPROVING A LOCAL DESIGNATION

1.

2.

Completed nominations shall be reviewed by the Commission at the next scheduled
meeting.

After reviewing a nomination, the Commission shall, after notice, schedule a Class |
public hearing to consider the designation of a local historic landmark. At least fourteen
(14) days prior to such hearing, the Commission shall notify the owners of record, as
listed in the office of the City of Platteville’s assessor, and owners of property in whole or
in part situated within two hundred (200} feet of the boundaries of the property affected.

The Commission shall then conduct such public hearing and, in addition to the notified
persons, may hear expert witnesses. The Commission may conduct an independent
investigation into the proposed designation. Within fourteen (14) days after the close of
the public hearing, the Commission shall, after application of the criteria in Section
27.04(A), make a decision to approve or deny the designation of the property as a local
historic landmark, and forward the recommendation to the Common Council.

The Common Council, upon receipt of the recommendation from the Historic
Preservation Commission, shall either approve or reject the Local Historic Landmark
designation. Such action shall not become effective except by the favorable vote of a
simple majority of the quorum present of the Common Council.



5.

Notifications: After the vote has been made, notification shall be sent to the property
owner or owners, the HPC and to Platteville's Plan Commission. In the case of a
favorable vote on local landmark designation, documentation should be sent to the
Wisconsin State Historical Society.

Voluntary Historic Preservation Easement. At any time following such designation of the
property, the owner of any local historic landmark may enter into a preservation
easement on the subject property after negotiation with the Historic Preservation
Commission. The Commission may assist the owner in preparing such easement in the
interest of preserving the landmark. The owner shall record such easement in the office
of the Grant County Register of Deeds, and shall notify the City Assessor of such
easement and the conditions thereof.

D. RESCINDING A LOCAL DESIGNATION

1.

To remove a property from the local register as a designated local historic landmark, at
least one of the following must apply:

a. The property has ceased to meet the criteria for designation; the qualities for which it
was nominated or designated have been lost or destroyed.

b. Additional information forthcoming after designation demonstrates that the property
does not possess sufficient significance to be a local landmark.

¢. A professional error was made in the designation of the property.
d. There was prejudicial procedural error in the designation process.

Procedures for rescinding a local historic landmark designation shail follow those for
making a locat designation, Section 27.04(C).

27.05 LOCAL HISTORIC DISTRICTS

A. DESIGNATION CRITERIA

A Local Historic District may be designated for any geographic area of particular historic,
architecturatl or cultural significance to the City of Platteville. To be considered for
designation as a local historic district within the City of Platteville, one of the following must

apply:

1.

The proposed area is already designated as a Historic District at the State or National
level.

The proposed area is an expansion of an already designed Historic District at the State
or National level.

The proposed area consists of a minimum of three (3) contiguous properties designated
as Local Historic Landmarks.

The proposed area is contiguous with a “block” shape, consisting of a minimum of three
(3) properties qualifying as contributing historic properties that meet the criteria for local
historic landmarks listed in Section 27.04(A}. The area may contain non-contributing
structures, but a majority of the properties must be considered contributing.



B. INITIATING A NOMINATION FOR DESIGNATION

1.

The owners of parcels within the proposed district may submit a written petition, or the
Commission may begin the nomination process for designation of a local historic district.
In either case, a written petition signed by the owners of a minimum of a simple majority
of the parcels within the proposed district is required. Each parcel included in the
proposed district shall be allowed one (1) vote, and all owners or their designees of the
parcel must sign the petition for the parcel to be counted as a vote in favor.

As per Wisconsin CLG requirements, property owners are not allowed to “opt out” of
Local Historic District designation and owner consent for inclusion in a local historic
district is not required.

C. PROCEDURES FOR APPROVING A LOCAL DESIGNATION

1.

Upon receipt of a petition described in Section 27.05(B), the Commission shall prepare a
historic preservation plan for the proposed district. Each historic preservation plan
prepared for or by the Historic Preservation Commission shall include a cultural and
architectural analysis supporting the historic significance of the proposed district, the
specific guidelines for preservation, and a statement of preservation objectives.

Review and Adoption

a. The Historic Preservation Commission and the City Plan Commission shall hold a
joint public hearing when considering the preservation plan for a Local Historic
District. Notice of the time, place and purpose of the public hearing shall be sent by
the City Clerk to the property owners of record, as listed in the office of the City
Assessor, within the proposed Local Historic District or those situated in whole or in
part within two hundred (200) feet of the boundaries of the proposed Local Historic
District. Said notice is to be sent at least fourteen (14) days prior to the date of the
publiic hearing.

b. Within fourteen (14) days following the public hearing, the Historic Preservation
Commission and the City Plan Commission shalt hold separate votes to approve,
reject or withhold the plan. If there are major concerns with an aspect of the
preservation plan, a Commission may withhold voting until those concerns are
addressed. Within each Commission, a simple majority vote is needed for approval.
The recommendations from each Commission will be forwarded to the Common
Council.

¢. Upon receipt of the recommendations from the Historic Preservation Commission
and the City Plan Commission, the Common Council shail hold a public hearing,
notice to be given as noted in subparagraph a. above and shall, following the public
hearing, either designate or reject the Local Historic District. Nominations for a local
historic district begun under Section 27.05(B) become effective upon a simple
majority vote of the Platteville Common Council Designation of the Local Historic
District shall constitute adoption of the preservation plan prepared for that district and
direct the implementation of said plan.

Notification: After the vote has been made, notification shall be sent to the property
owner or owners, the HPC and City Plan Commission. In the case of a favorable vote
on local district designation, documentation should be sent to the Wisconsin State
Historical Society.



27.06 REGULATION OF CONSTRUCTION, RECONSTRUCTION, ALTERATION AND
DENMOLITION OF LOCALLY DESIGNATED PROPERTIES

An owner or person in charge of a local historic landmark or a structure within a local historic
district shall not reconstruct, alter or demolish all or any part of the exterior of such property or
construct any improvement upon such designated property or properties or cause or permit any
such work to be performed upon such property or demolish such property unless a Certificate of
Appropriateness (CoA) or demolition permit has been approved by the Commission. The
Building Inspector shall not issue a permit for any such work until a CoA or demolition permit
has been approved.

A. STANDARDS AND GUIDELINES. The Commission and liaisons shall use the following
documents to assist with making decisions when reviewing changes to locally designated
landmarks and properties within locally designated districts.

1.

6.

The Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation
(https://www.nps.gov/subjects/taxincentives/secretarys-standards-rehabilitation.htm )

Standards for Rehabilitation & Guidelines for Rehabilitating Historic Buildings
(https://www.nps.gov/articles/000/treatment-standards-rehabilitation.htm)

Platteville Downtown Design Standards
(https://www.platteville.org/sites/default/files/fileattachments/community development/
page/273/design standards text only final 14feb12.pdf)

Commercial Historic District Signage & Awning Guidelines
(https://www.platteville.org/sites/default/files/fileattachments/community development/
page/311/platteville historic signage guidelines final 28aug1i4.pdf)

Dumpster Enclosure Guidelines for the Downtown Historic District
(https://'www.platteville.org/sites/default/files/fileattachments/community development/
page/311/dumpster enclosure guidelines final 15oct14.pdf)

Maintenance and Repair Approval Policy (need URL)

B. CRITERIA. In making a determination whether to issue or deny a Certificate of
Appropriateness, the Commission and its liaisons shall consider, among other things, the
effect of the proposed construction, alteration, removal or demolition upon historic, aesthetic
or architectural value, characteristics and significance of the structure, site, neighborhood
and/or district. The criteria to be used by the Commission in making its determination shall
include, but not be limited to:

1. The maintenance of the significant original qualities or character of the structure or
property, including, if significant, its landscape. The removal or alteration of any historic
or distinctive architectural features shall be avoided.

2. The compatibility of the architectural style and design detailing the proposed
construction, alteration, addition or repair with the original architecture of the landmark or
styles within the historic district.



. The compatibility of the general design, arrangement, scale, texture or materials of the
construction or alteration, with the historic, aesthetic or architectural values,
characteristics and significance of the historic district and/or landmark.

. The relationship of the location of the construction, alteration, or demolition to the
streets, public or semipublic ways and any other improvement or property within a
historic district.

. Whether, in the case of a designated historic Jandmark within an historic district, the
proposed work would detrimentally change, destroy or adversely affect any exterior
architectural feature of the improvement upon which such work is to be done.

Whether, in the case of the construction of a new improvement upon an historic
landmark, the exterior of such improvement would adversely affect or not harmonize with
the external appearance of other neighboring improvements on such site.

. Whether construction, alteration and demolition are done in accordance with the
following:

a. All buildings, structures and sites are recognized as products of their time, and
alterations have a historic basis.

b. Such exterior physical changes as may have taken place in the course of time are
evidence of the history and development of a building, structure, or site and its
environment. Because these changes may have acquired significance in their own
right, this significance should be recognized and respected.

c. Distinctive stylistic features or examples of skilled craftsmanship which characterize
a building, structure, or site are treated with sensitivity.

d. Deteriorated architectural features are repaired rather than replaced, wherever
possibie. In the event replacement is necessary, the new material need not be
identical to but should match material being replaced in composition, design, color,
texture and other visual qualities.

e. The surface cleaning of structures is undertaken with the gentlest means possible.
Abrasive cleaning and other cleaning methods will damage the historic building
materials should not be undertaken.

f. Every reasonable effort will be made to protect and preserve archaeological
resources affect by or adjacent to any project.

d. Wherever possible, new additions or alterations to structures should be done in such
manner that if such additions or alterations were to be removed in the future, the
essential form and integrity of the structure would not be impaired.

h. Contemporary design for alterations and additions to existing properties is
undertaken in such a manner that it does not destroy significant historical,
architectural or cultural materials, and such design is compatible with the size, sale,
color, material and character of the property, neighborhood or environment as
outlined:

i. Height. The height of the proposed structure or additions or alterations should be
compatible with surrounding structures.

ii. Proportions of structure’s front fagade. The proportions and relationships
between the width and height of the proposed structure should be compatible
with nearby structures.



iil. Proportions of openings into facility. The proportions and relationships between
doors and windows should be compatible with existing structures,

iv. Relationship of building masses and spaces. The relationship of a structure to
the open space between it and adjoining structures should be compatible.

v. Roof shapes. The design of the roof should be compatible with adjoining
structures.

vi. Landscape and appurtenances. Landscaping and the use of appurtenances
should be sensitive to the individual structures, its occupants and their needs.
Further, the landscape treatment should be compatible with surrounding
structures and landscapes.

vii. Scale of structure. The scale of the structure should be compatible with
surrounding structures.

viii. Directional expression of front elevation. Street facades should blend with other
structures with regard to directional expression. When adjacent structures have a
dominance horizontal or vertical expression {cornices, transom details), this
shouid be carried over and reflected.

ix. Architectural details. Architectural details and materials should be incorporated
as necessary to relate the new with the old and to preserve and enhance the
inherent characteristics of that area.

C. PROCEDURES

1.

2.

The owner or person in charge of a local historic landmark or a property within a local
historic district wishing to make alterations to the property or a building exterior shall
submit a Certificate of Appropriateness to the City.

A Commission Liaison will review the CoA application for completeness, and determine
whether the CoA may be approved by a Commission Liaison or if it must come before
the Commission for approval.

a. As liaisons of the Commission, the Building Inspector or Community Development
Director may approve CoAs entailing ordinary building maintenance and other work
that involves repairs to existing features of a local historic landmark, or the
replacement of elements of a structure or site with pieces similar in appearance.
Liaisons must use the same standards and guidelines stated in Section 27.06(A) that
apply to the HPC in approving a CoA. The types of projects that can be approved by
Commission liaisons are described in the “Maintenance and Repair Approval Policy”
adopted by the Commission on November 30, 2021. Upon approval, a building
permit shall be issued for the work described in the CoA. The liaison will place the
CoA on the next Commission meeting agenda and present the approved CoA as a
notification.

b. If the Commission Liaison does not approve the Certificate of Appropriateness, or for
any work above and beyond that described in subparagraph a. above, the CoA wili
go before the Commission for review. If the Commission determines that the
proposed changes meet all standards and guidelines, and are consistent with the
character and features of the property or district, it shall issue the Certificate of

10



Appropriateness. The Commission shall make the decision within forty five (45) days
of the filing of the appilication.

3. The issuance of a Certificate of Appropriateness shall not relieve the applicant from
obtaining other permits and approvals required by the City of Plattevilie. A building
permit or other municipal permit shall be invalid if it is obtained without the presentation
of the Certificate of Appropriateness required for the proposed work. The property owner
shall ensure that the necessary permits are obtained for the property.

D. APPEALS

The Commission shall, with the cooperation of the applicant, work with the applicant in an
attempt to obtain a Certificate of Appropriateness within the guidelines of this ordinance.
Should the Commission choose to not issue a Certificate of Appropriateness due {o the
failure of the proposal to conform to the guidelines, the applicant may appeal such decision
fo the Common Council within thirty (30} days. The Commission’s decision {o not issue a
Certificate of Appropriateness within forty-five (45) days of the filing of the application shall
be deemed a denial of the request, which may be appealed as provided herein.

Upon denial of a CoA, the applicant may request to have the appeal placed on the next
available Common Council agenda as per the standard Council procedures. The applicant
shall file a written appeal with the Community Development Director specifying the grounds
for such an appeal, and which shall be submitted no {ater than thirty (30) days from the date
of the decision of the Historic Preservation Commission. Such a request to reverse the
decision of the Commission may be approved following a majority vote of the Common
Council.

27.07 INTERIM CONTROL. No building permit shall be issued by the Building Inspector for the
exterior alteration or construction of, or the demolition or removal of, a nominated historic
structure, historic site, or any property or structure within a nominated historic district from the
date of the meeting of the Historic Preservation Commission at which a nomination form is first
presented until the final disposition of the nomination by the Historic Preservation Commission
or the Common Council unless such alteration, removal or demolition is authorized by formal
resolution of the Common Council as necessary for public health, welfare or safety. In no event
shall the delay be for more than ninety (80) days.

27.08 SEPARABILITY. If any provision of this chapter or the application thereof to any person
or circumstances is held invalid, the remainder of this chapter and the application of such
provisions to other persons or circumstances shall not be affected thereby.

27.09 PENALTIES FOR VIOLATIONS.

A. Forfeiture Penalty. The penalty for violation of any provision of this Chapter shall be a
forfeiture as hereinafter provided, together with the costs of prosecution and any penalty
assessment imposed by Wisconsin Statutes.

11



B. Forfeiture Schedule. The penalty for violation of any provision of this Chapter shall be as set
forth on the forfeiture schedule adopted by Section 1.10 of the City Code.

27.10 LISTING OF DESIGNATED HISTORIC DISTRICTS AND LANDMARKS
A. LOCAL HISTORIC DISTRICTS

Platteville’s Main Street Commercial Historic District - designated on 3/9/1990
B. LOCAL HISTORIC LANDMARKS

315 W. Main Street — designated on 9/29/2003

25 W. Gridley (formerly 150 S. Chestnut) — designated on 10/13/2003

480 N. Third Street — designated on 7/19/2004

130 N. Hickory Street — designated on 7/19/2004

180 Bayley Avenue — designated on 1/31/2004

230 Bayley Avenue — designated on 1/31/2005

185 Bayley Avenue — designated on 2/22/2005

280 Division Street — designated on 11/27/2018

Indian Park, 500 blocks of N. Court Street and N. Fourth Street — designated on
10/27/2020

Mitchell Rountree Stone Cottage, corner of Jewett and Lancaster Sts — designated on __
MORE?

C. STATE AND NATIONAL HISTORIC DESIGNATIONS
Add these

27.11 DEFINITIONS

ADAPTIVE USE: Rehabilitation of a structure for a use other than its original or intended historic
use.

ADDITION: Any act or process that changes one (1) or more of the exterior architectural features of
a building or structure by increasing the size or capacity of a structure through new construction or by
joining one (1) or more existing structures.

ALTERATION: Any act or process that changes one (1) or more of the exterior architectural features
of a building, structure, or landscape feature.

12



APPLICANT: The owner of record of a nominated property and/or its agent or representative,; or a
contract purchaser of a nominated property; or another interested party who is a resident of the City
of Platteville: or a group of residents; or an association whose membership includes residents of the
City of Platteville, or the Historic Preservation Commission seeking authority from the city to
undertake a course of action related to a specific property or parcel.

ARCHAEOLOGICAL SIGNIFICANCE: An assessment of the distinctive elements associated with a
landscape feature, place, site, or area that has yielded or is likely to yield information and/or artifacts
concerning past patterns of human settlement, previous cultures in Wisconsin, or previous periods of
the present culture.

ARCHEOLOGICAL SURVEY INVENTORY: Archaeological Sites inventory (ASl) — contains
information about archaeoclogical and burial sites, unmarked cemeteries, marked cemeteries and
cultural sites.

ARCHITECTURAL SIGNIFICANCE (Designation): An assessment of the distinctive elements
associated with a resource type, period style, method of construction, or use of indigenous
construction and/or the evaluation of the essential characteristics associated with an important
builder, designer, architect, or craftsman who has contributed to the development of the community,
county, region, state, or nation.

ARCHITECTURAL FEATURE: The distinguishing exterior elements of a building or structure
including shape, size, design, style, fenestration, materials and decorative details.

BUILDING: Any structure, affixed to the ground, having a roof that may provide shelter, support,
protection or enclosure of persons, animals, or property of any kind. (see Structure)

BUILDING PERMIT: A written record issued by the building inspector authorizing the work approved
on the COA at a specific property or site.

CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS (CoA): An official form issued by the historic preservation
commission (or commission liaison on behalf of the commission), stating that the proposed work on a
designated resource, located within a historic district or identified as an individual landmark property
is in accord with the requirements of the ordinance and that (1) the proposed work must be completed
as specified in the certificate; and (2) that the building Inspector may issue any permits needed to do
the work specified in the certificate.

COLOR, REVIEW OF: The review of any color for any installed architectural feature shall be
considered only for those elements which are comprised of permanent or semi-permanent materials
(i.e. masonry, pre-finished metal, terra cotta, etc.). The historic preservation commission shall not
review color palettes for any material which is both reversible and temporary in nature (i.e. paint,
stain, asphalt shingles, etc.). Review of color shall be limited to review for general compatibility with
the architectural style and permanent, significant materials of the designated property as well as
general compatibility with the surrounding neighborhood or environs. The historic preservation
commission shall not dictate color selections based solely on aesthetic opinion and without historic
basis or precedence.

COMMISSION: Platteville Historic Preservation Commission created under Chapter 27.02.

COMMISSION LIAISON: The city's director of community development and the city building
inspector.

13



COMMISSIONERS: Members of the Platteville Historic Preservation Commission appointed by the
council president, with the consent of city council, and entitied to vote on cases brought to the
commission.

COMPATIBILITY: The positive relationship of alterations to existing buildings and design for new
construction to their environs; compatibility is measured by consistent application of accepted design
guidelines and standards that define the individual visual character, function and use, and
architectural features of a specific geographic area.

CONTEXT: Summary information about the period, local setting and/or surroundings, circumstances,
associations, and events that created, influenced, or resulted in the development of a specific
property or group of properties, collected to assist in the development of a full understanding and
assessment of the property.

CONTRIBUTING PROPERTY: A classification assigned, as a result of a comprehensive survey, toa
site or another parce! of real estate and its associated buildings, structures, objects, and other
improvements within a designated historic district. The classification signifies that a site or parcel and
its associated improvements support the overall character, feeling, and significance of a district
although the site or parcel and its associated improvements may not have individual architectural or
historical significance as a single property but, due to its location within or proximity to a streetscape
or neighborhood, reflects the significance of the district on the whole.

CONTRIBUTING RESOURCE: A classification assigned to one (1) or more individual buildings,
structures, objects, or improvements on a parcel of real estate within a designated historic district or
attached to a parcel of real estate designated as a historic landmark.

COUNCIL: The common council of the City of Platteville, Wisconsin

DEMOLITION: Any act or process which requires a demolition permit for the purpose of removing or
destroying, in whole or in part, a building, structure, or resource.

DEMOLITION BY NEGLECT: Any voluntary or involuntary act or process that results in a failure to
maintain a Landmark, Landmark site or contributing property or resource in an historic district.

DESIGN GUIDELINE: The National Park Service Guidelines for Rehabilitating Historic Buildings is a
standardized principle that provides general instruction for the appropriate preservation and/or
adaptation of the historic and/or architectural character of a structure, object, site, or area. Also
serves as a collective set of principles to promote architectural compatibility of new construction and
exterior alterations in Historic Districts.

DEVELOPED PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY: Any human-made change to a public thoroughfare or
easement granted for the purpose of public access, included but not limited to paved or unpaved
highways, streets, bicycle/pedestrian/multi-use paths, or sidewalks. This does not include alieys.

DEVELOPMENT: Any human-made change to improved or unimproved reat estate, including, but
not limited to, the construction of buildings, structures or accessory structures; the construction of
additions or substantial alterations to buildings, structures or accessory structures; the placement of
buildings or structures; ditching, lagooning, dredging, filling, grading, paving, excavation or drilling
operations; and the deposition or extraction of earthen materials.

14




EXTERIOR FEATURES: Architectural or structural elements that define the architectural style and
general design patterns of the exterior of a building or other structures, inctuding the type and texture
of building materials and the type, style, and general arrangement of alf windows, doors, ornamental
features, light fixtures, signs, fences/walls, and other appurtenant elements.

FINDING OF FACT: The conclusions found {o be true as determined by the commission from an
examination of the underlying evidence and testimony of a case under consideration in accordance
with established review criteria.

HISTORIC: Related to the city's architectural, artistic, civic, cultural, economic, educational, ethnic,
political, settlement, developmental, or social heritage at least fifty (50} years prior to the date of
evaluation.

HISTORIC CHARACTER: Those architectural forms, materials, elements, features, methods of
construction or craftsmanship, spatial arrangements and architectural style that-when combined-
result in a distinctive setting, building or area.

HISTORIC DISTRICT Any area established by city ordinance which includes or encompasses such
historic sites, landmarks, buildings, signs, appurtenances, structures, or objects as may be
determined as appropriate for historic preservation. Such designated district or districts need not be a
single enclosed area, nor must the areas or sites be contiguous to constitute a district,

HISTORIC LANDMARK: Any building, structure, object, improvement, or site of particular historic or
aesthetic significance to the city, the state, or the nation. Landmarks include sites, buildings or
structures where culfural, pofitical, spiritual, economic, educational, social or artistic history of the
community, state or nation is reflected or exemplified or which are identified with historic personages
or with important events in local, state or national history, or which embaody the distinguishing
characteristics of an architectural specimen, inherently valuabte for representation of a period, styte or
method of construction, or a notable work of construction, or a notable work of a master designer or
architect whose individual genius influenced a particular period of time or aesthetic movement.

HISTCRIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION: Platteville Historic Preservation Commission as
established under Section 27.02 of this code with the jurisdiction and authority granted in Sections
27.03-27.086 of this code.

RHISTORIC SIGNIFICANCE: The sum of the qualities of a property or resource that yield definable
character, interest or value that is directly attributable to the developmental heritage or culture of the
community, county, region, state or nation; to the location of an important local, county, region, state
or national event; or to the identification with a person or persons who made important contributions
to the development of the community, county, region, state or nation.

IMPROVEMENT: Anything constructed or erected that requires permanent or temporary location on-
or in the ground but not intended for the sheltering of human activity, including- but not imited to-
dumpster enclosures, fences, {andscaping features {gazebos, arbors, pergolas, etc.) advertising
signs, billboards, antennae, satellite dishes, swimming pools, solar panels, and wind generating
devices.

INTEGRITY, ARCHITECTURAL: A determination of the extent that a site, structure, ohject, building
or area retains its historic design character that includes an evaluation of whether changes over time
have resulted in undue, adverse impacts on historically significant features of the site, structure,
object, building, or area.

15



INTEGRITY, HISTORIC: A determination of the extent that a site, structure, object, building, or area
retains its defining archaeological and/or cultural attributes associated with a significant person or
particular event of national, regional, or local significance.

INTEGRITY, STRUCTURAL: An unimpaired condition relating to the functional stability of major

building components in relationship to their original or altered function; a measure of the quality of
construction and the ability of the structure to function as designed or required; and the quality or

state of being complete or uncompromised.

LANDSCAPE FEATURE: Character-defining elements which are associated with the architectural or
cuiltural significance of a site or property, including, but not limited to, naturally-occurring
topographical forms, intentionally-designed lawns, hedges, walkways, driveways, fences, walls,
arbors, pergolas, trellises, terraces, water features, topography, lighting standards, and furnishings.

MASS: The size and setbacks of buildings or structures and the locations of such buildings with
respect {o one another.

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES: The official list of places within the United States
of America that are recognized for their historical, architectural, or archaeological significance and
considered worthy of preservation.

NON-CONTRIBUTING PROPERTY: A building, structure, object, improvement, or site within a
Historic District that does not possess individual architectural, histeric, or structural significance or
integrity. Non-contributing properties may be further classified as non-contributing due to age (less
than fifty [50] years old at the time of classification), non-contributing due to reversible conditions
(which, if modified, may permit the reclassification of a property to contributing or significant); or non-
contributing due to a lack of any significance or integrity as herein defined.

NON-CONTRIBUTING RESQURCE: An individual building, structure, object, or improvement which
is part of a parcel of real estate within a designated historic district or a historic landmark property that
does not possess individual archaeological, architectural, historic, or structural significance or
integrity. Non-contributing resources may be further classified as non-contributing due to age (less
than fifty (50) years old at the time of classification); non-contributing due to reversible conditions
(which, if modified, may permit the reclassification of a property to contributing or significant); or non-
contributing due to a lack of any significance or integrity as herein defined.

OBJECT: Any improvement that is of relatively small scale or of simple construction for primarily
ornamental or artistic purpeses including fountains, monuments, or sculptures. (see Improvement).

ORDINARY REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE: Any work done on or replacement of any part of an
improvement for which a permit issued by the building inspector is not required. The purpose and
effect of such work or replacement is generally to correct any deterioration or decay of or damage to
such improvement or any part thereof and to restore the same, as nearly as may be practicable, to its
condition prior to the occurrence of such deterioration, decay or damage.

OWNER CONSENT: The act or resuit of reaching consensus and agreement, through reason and
deliberation, by the owner{s) of real estate when historic designation is proposed at the suggestion of

another party.

OWNER OF RECORD: The person, corporation or other legal entity identified as the property owner
in the official records of the Grant County (Wisconsin) Recorder.

16



PERIOD OF SIGNIFICANCE: The duration of lime between beginning and ending years during
which a historic district is associated with the important events, activities, persons, or attained
characteristics which qualify it for historic district status.

PRESERVATION: The act or process of applying measures necessary {o sustain the existing form,
integrity, and materials of a historic property or historic resource.

PROPERTY: Any building, structure, abject, or other improvement and the parcel of land, on record
with the Grant County (Wisconsin) Recorder, to which those improvements are firmly attached or
affixed,

PUBLIC VIEW: The sight perspective of all portions of a property that may be readily viewed from a
public right-of-way or public place, excluding views accessible only from an alleyway, public or
private.

RECONSTRUCTION: The act or process of depicting, by means of new construction, the form,
features, and detailing of a non-surviving site, building, structure, or object for the purpose of
replicating its appearance at a specific period of time and in its historic location.

REHABILITATION: The process of returning a property (site, structure, and/or building) to a state of
utility, through repair or alteration, which makes possible an efficient contemporary use while
preserving those portions and features of the property which are significant to its historic,
architectural, and cultural values.

REMODEL: The process of altering the existing structurat components or architectural features
and/or finishes of a resource or property; to re-configure an existing resource or property in such a
manner as to remove, cover, replace or rearrange elements of defining character.

RELOCATION: Any repositicning of a building, structure, or object on its existing site or the act of
moving a building, structure, or object to ancther site.

REMOVAL: Any relocation or demolition of a structure or a part of a structure.

REPAIR: Any minor construction undertaken to remedy an existing condition that has deteriorated
but, otherwise, is not defined as construction, alteration, demolition, remodeling, removal, or
relocation,

RESQOURCE: Any individual building, structure, object, or other improvement excluding the land to
which those items are firmly attached or affixed.

RESTORATION: The act or process of returning any building, structure, object, improvement, or site
to its appearance at a specific period of time by removing later work and replacing missing features
present during that specific period to accurately portray the original architectural character and setting
of a building, structure, or object.

SIGNIFICANT PROPERTY: A classification assigned, as a rasult of a comprehensive survey, to a
site or another parcel of real estate and its associated buildings, struciures, objects, and other
improvements that are at least thirty (30} years old and are located within a designated historic
district. The classification signifies that a site or parcel and its associated improvements possess
individual architectural or historical importance based on an association with significant persans;
events; patterns of community development; architectural style; crafismanship; methods of
construction; andfor use of indigenous materials.

17



SIGNIFICANT RESOURCE: A classification assigned to one (1) or more individual buildings,
structures, objects, or other improvements exclusive of any associated parcel of real estate that are at
least fifty (50) vears old. The classification signifies that the improvements possess individual
architectural or historical importance based on an association with significant persons; events;
patterns of community development; architectural style; craftsmanship; methods of construction;
and/or use of indigencus materials.

SITE: Any discrete area of land, of an event, a prehistoric or historic occupation or activity where the
location itself maintains value or significance solely for activities or persons associated with past
events that are not related to a particular or extant building or structure. Examples include but not
limited to; Indian trails, effigy mounds, battlefields, or locations of former structures.

STANDARDS: The Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties is a
set of principles developed by the National Park Service (36 C.F.R. 68.3, as may be amended) to
help protect historic properties by promeoting consistent preservation practices and providing guidance
to historic building owners and building managers, preservation consultants, architects, contractors,
and project reviewers on how to approach the treatment of historic properties.

STRUCTURE: Any building or improvement attached to the land. (see Building and Improvement)

STRUCTURAL CHANGE: Any change, alteration or repair of one (1) or more supperting members
or elements of a building or structure, including foundations, load-bearing walls or roofs.

SURVEY: A systematic gathering of information related to the architectural, historic, scenic, and
archaeological significance of buildings, structures, objects andfor landscape features within a
specified geographic area through an assessment of field and archival documentation for the purpose
of identifying properties that may be designated as individual landmarks or as a historic district.

VISUAL COMPATABILITY: Harmonious with location, context, setting and character.

18



